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Historic Name:__________________________________________________________________ 
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Building  Structure  Site   Object 
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 (h) Owing to its unique location or singular physical characteristic, represents an established and 
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 (j) Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community.
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Tripoli Barber Supply Historic Designa�on Nomina�on  

 
Figure 1. Location of 606 S. 9th Street. Source: City of Philadelphia, Atlas. 

 

5. TRIPOLI BARBER SUPPLY COMPANY BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION 

The Tripoli Barber Supply building at 604-06 S. 9th Street is located on the west side of S. 9th Street 

between South Street and Bainbridge Streets in the Bella Vista neighborhood of Philadelphia. The 

building is situated in a mixed residen�al and commercial area. The boundary for the designa�on 

includes only the four-story building on the parcel formerly known as 606 S. 9th Street. The designa�on 

excludes the non-historic building on the parcel formerly known as 604 S. 9th Street and the non-historic 

building at the rear fron�ng S. Percy Street, although these buildings are included in the official tax 

parcel as shown in Figure 1 above, because of property consolida�ons over the years.   
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Figure 2. Boundary of designation to include only the four-story building outlined in red at 606 S. 9th Street. All additions at side 
and rear are not included in this boundary. Source: City of Philadelphia, Atlas. 
 

The boundary descrip�on of the building at 606 S. 9th Street, to be designated as historic, is as follows: 

 

Situate on the West side of S. 9th Street at the distance of 72 feet Southward from the South side of 

South Street in the 2nd Ward of the City of Philadelphia. Containing in front or breadth on the said S. 9th 

Street approximately 24 feet and extending of that width in length or depth Westward approximately 73 

feet to the rear of the subject building. Being the property formerly known as 606 S. 9th Street prior to 

consolida�on with the adjacent and rear property.  
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Figure 3. 1934 Appraisal map with Pin marking the location of Tripoli Barber Supply building. Note that the solid green overlay 
shows a “complete or substantially complete” concentration of Italians, with the nearby dashed green lines showing a 
predomination of Italians. Solid pink shows a “complete or substantially complete” concentration of Blacks. Source: J.M. Brewer 
Appraisal Map, https://www.philageohistory.org/tiles/viewer/.  
 

 
Figure 4. 1942 WPA land use map with pin showing location of Tripoli Barber Supply Company. Source: 
https://www.philageohistory.org/tiles/viewer/.  
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6. TRIPOLI BARBER SUPPLY COMPANY BUILDING DESCRIPTION 

The Tripoli Barber Supply Company building at 606 S. 9th Street was designed by local Italian American 

architect Enrico Coscia. This four-story building, completed in 1925, features a soaring linear façade of 

stone and brick construc�on and decora�ve elements that evoke the Italian Renaissance architectural 

style.  

 
Figure 5. Front facade of 606 S. 9th Street, November 2023. 
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The building’s façade for floors two through four features buff color striated bricks, symmetrical tall 

order pilasters and rounded arched windows characteris�c of the Italian Renaissance Revival style. All 

windows have been replaced. The 1923 date engraving may have been slightly aspira�onal when 

compared to the Philadelphia Real Estate Record and Builders’ Guide entries.  

 

 
Figure 6. Floors two through four of primary facade, November 2023. 
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The company name “Tripoli Barber Supply Co. Inc.” is featured prominently above the entrance, 

bracketed by round decora�ve floral plaques. 

 
Figure 7. 606 S. 9th St. above entry, November 2023. 

 
The large showroom windows on the first and second floors are supported by a limestone base sculpted 

with haunched ogee moldings integrated with rus�cated quoining. 

 
Figure 8. 606 S. 9th St. storefront detail, November 2023. 
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Site and Building History 

In 1924, the DiPuppo Brothers (Charles, Frank and Angelo) were ready to expand their successful 

Philadelphia business, the Tripoli Beauty Supply Company, into a larger commercial space. They selected 

the firm of Wat & Coscia for their construc�on project. Henry (Enrico) Coscia earned his Cer�ficate of 

Proficiency in Architecture in 1921 from the University of Pennsylvania. Coscia partnered with William 

Wat, a local engineer, on mul�ple projects connected to Philadelphia’s Italian American community 

during the 1920s. Wat & Coscia were hired to transform a 1900 row home on the DiPuppo Brothers’ 

property of 606 S. 9th Street into a mul�-story commercial building. Coscia’s design, completed in 1925, 

included a sales showroom and offices as well as a manufacturing and distribu�on point for the Tripoli 

Barber Supply business. 

 
Figure 9. The Philadelphia Real Estate Record and Builders Guide, v.39, 1924, p.518, 08/13/1924. 

 
Figure 10. The Philadelphia Real Estate and Builders' Guide, v. 40, 1925, p. 346, 06/3/1925. 

 
The Tripoli Barber Supply company was owned and managed by the DiPuppo family for decades. By the 

1940s, 604 S. 9th Street was combined with the property next door to accommodate all of the extra 
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business. As the DiPuppo brothers died or re�red, the next genera�on took over.  Figure 11 shows the 

building as it looked in 1954. In the following decades, the company transi�oned to beauty products and 

changed its name to Tripoli Barber and Beauty Supply Company, and finally to the Tripoli Beauty Supply 

Company. The company closed in 1973.

 
Figure 11. 1954 photograph of the Tripoli Barber Supply Company building. Source: City of Philadelphia, Department of Records.  
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Figure 12. 1954 photograph showing the southwest corner of S. 9th Street and South Street, with the Tripoli Barber Supply 
Company building called out with an arrow. Source: City of Philadelphia, Department of Records.  
 

Since then, the building’s ownership has changed several �mes. The space became a macrobio�c 

cooking center called The East West Founda�on in the early 1980s, then an art gallery, then John Dorety 

An�ques un�l the mid-1990s. Cur�s Anthony moved in his Via Bicycle business about 1998. The space 

was occupied by the Via Bicycle business which thrived in the Bella Vista neighborhood for over 20 

years. When the building was sold in 2016, Via Bicycle moved out and removed their business sign. 

This revealed the original signage for Tripoli Barber Supply Co. underneath.  
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Figure 13. Via Bicycle, September 2016. Note the façade at 604 S. 9th Street prior to recent alterations. Source: Google Street 
View. 
 

Since June 2018, the property of 604-06 S. 9th Street has been owned by KRMP LLC. The property 

includes condominiums on floors two through four. From 2021 to the present, the ground floor of 606 S. 

9th Street has been home to the Pet Snobs Bou�que business, which provides grooming and pet supplies. 
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7. TRIPOLI BARBER SUPPLY COMPANY STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE 

 
Figure 14. 606 S. 9th Street, April 2023. Source: Google Street View. 

 

The Tripoli Barber Supply Company building at 606 S. 9th Street is historically significant and merits lis�ng 

on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places. Pursuant to Sec�on 14-1004(1) of the Philadelphia Code, 

the property sa�sfies Criteria for Designa�on D and J. 
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The Bella Vista Neighborhood Associa�on wishes to express its thanks and gra�tude to Lawrence 

Weintraub, AIA for researching and wri�ng the Criteria D significance which follows. 

 

Criterion D: Embodies distinguishing characteristics of an architectural style. 

The Tripoli Barber Supply building, erected in 1925, is a dis�nc�ve example of the Italian Renaissance 

Revival architectural style. It exhibits an eclec�c early Art Deco period revivalist display of both the 

Vene�an and Floren�ne Palazzo styles of the Italian Renaissance of the mid to late 15th century, as 

inspired by ancient Roman and Byzan�ne architecture. 

 

Unlike actual Italian Renaissance palazzos, this purpose-built commercial building has a modern early 

20th century commercial glass storefront at the ground floor, with subtle Greek and Roman classical 

adornments, all apparently in their original form but more recently painted. Like many storefronts of the 

era, it has large plate glass window units set upon a raised limestone base and projec�ng squared 

limestone windowsill, with small, centered cellar windows that have been boarded over.  

 

The glass units are framed in bronze trim to each side of an inset doorway. A horizontal structural 

mullion above is covered in stepped bronze flashing and capped with linear repea�ng stylized cast 

acroterion cres�ng. The mullion supports a level of transom windows above the en�re storefront door 

and window assembly.  

 

At the center of the transom level above the doorway, sits a formed bronze metal crosshead, with a 

restrained classical entablature, supported by a pair of corbels. The entablature is capped with elongated 

scrolls that frame a ver�cally oriented fleur-de-lis crest that altogether imply the form of a classical 

pediment. The entry door is likely original to the building, a highly stylized rectangular 15 light French 

door with a segmental arc top across the top row of glass panes and with half round curves that project 

from the sides of the s�le frame into the top right and le� side windowpanes.  

 

The ground floor of the commercial building also exhibits stacked limestone quoins, with greatly eased 

edges, that frame each side of the storefront, evoking the ground level rus�cated stone quoining o�en 

found on Floren�ne Italian Renaissance Palazzos. The overall storefront assembly is framed by a large 

classical ogee profile molding, also rendered in limestone, si�ng upon large plinth blocks.  
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The upper corners of the storefront opening have dropped quarter round insets to the ogee molding 

that architecturally provide haunches that visually draw the eye up the building and to allow support for 

the sea�ng of large, tall order, abstracted brick pilasters that frame the upper floors of the façade.  

A modest projec�ng limestone cornice, more of a drip edge, separates the base of the building from the 

upper three floors. Atop the limestone storefront cornice is a con�nuous limestone base course with 

ogee capped por�ons that form classical inspired bases for two sets of ver�cal brick pilasters upon the 

upper floors of the overall façade. 

 

The upper floors of the building are faced with a striated surface buff color brick, popular during the 

period of construc�on, that has darkened over �me from environmental pollutants that exhibit a 

motled and muddied appearance. The tooling of the mortar joints has been inten�onally inset 

approximately one-quarter of an inch from the brick surface, as was stylis�cally common in this period, 

to form shadow lines that further enhance the surface texture and paterning of the brickwork. 

The upper floors of the building form the classical appearance of a Vene�an Grand Canal Palazzo, with a 

central ver�cal group of 4 matching windows flanked by single windows at each side. At the second floor 

(as this was also a showroom floor), instead of the four windows, a large display window was flanked by 

single window openings. At the top floor, much like the Vene�an Palazzo style, the central four windows 

have arched tops to imply a loggia beyond. Above these windows, and above the arched double rowlock 

brick headers, the field area of brick alternates with headers set flush, and proud, to imply a rus�cated 

diaper patern. 

 

All the windows, though now replaced with modern ones, were originally deeply inset Italian 

Renaissance style casement windows with mun�ns that accentuated the masonry mass of the façade. 

The current windows are single insulated pane bronze color framed aluminum casement style with no 

mun�ns except at the top of the second-floor tripar�te display window opening. The current windows 

that flank the center display window appear to be tall fixed upper sashes with shorter lower operable 

single hung sash. 

 

The brickwork is employed in crea�ve ways to visually separate the overall upper façade into 

architectural areas that accentuate ver�cality with grand order pilasters at the sides of the building, 

narrower pilasters between the center group of windows and single ones at the sides, and stacked bond 

brick implied mullions between the four center windows. Above the windows, the brickwork is set with a 
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rowlock and soldier course to imply lintels, and another rowlock below that form windowsills. Above and 

below the third-floor windows the bricks are stacked in columns of headers and each rowlock frames to 

imply decora�ve spandrel panels.  

 

The top of the fourth floor is terminated with a con�nuous soldier brick course. Upon this, the façade is 

crowned with a pedimented parapet wall containing a round medallion date stone (1923) under the 

apex, and with short piers above each set of pilasters, all capped with limestone coping. 

 

Overall, though the form and geometry of the façade is directly inspired by the Palazzos of the Italian 

Renaissance, this building is of its �me, and exhibits subtle detailing of the early Art Deco Period as 

exhibited by the storefront and stylized classical bronze adornments, the atenuated and nearly flush 

components of the brick façade, the restrained projec�on of the lower limestone cornice, the eased 

edges of the limestone quoins, the dropped quarter rounds of the top frame of the storefront windows, 

the highly stylized French entry door, and raised bronze le�ng of the type font of the company name 

above the storefront, and the adjacent applied round bronze floral medallions. Also, in common with the 

early Art Deco period, the abstrac�on and termina�on of the upper façade and parapet is also quite 

restrained, with no obvious classical pilaster capitals, or classical cornice shown. 

 

Criterion J: Exemplifies the cultural, political, economic, social or historical heritage of the community. 

The Tripoli Barber Supply Company building has exemplified the evolving cultural, economic, social and 

historical heritage of the Bella Vista business community for almost 100 years. This historic building 

originated as a purpose-built store, manufacturing and distribu�on point for the DiPuppo brothers. They 

established their barber and beauty supply business in a South Philadelphia neighborhood that 

welcomed numerous immigrants and their businesses in the early 20th century. From the 1970’s to the 

present, this building has been home to unique, iconic businesses such as Via Bicycle, which have served 

the changing needs of the Bella Vista community. 

 

Charles, Frank, and Angelo DiPuppo emigrated from Italy to Philadelphia at the turn of the 20th century.  

Barbers by training, they established Tripoli Barber Supply Company at 525 S. 9th Street, near the corner 

of 9th and South Streets, in 1911. 
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Figure 15. Initial location of Tripoli Barber Supply Company at 525 S. 9th Street, being near the corner of 9th and South Streets. 
Source: La Libera Parola, 03 Apr 1921, p. 3. 
 

The DiPuppo brothers all lived near their place of business, with homes listed as being on the 700 block 

of League Street, and the 1200 and 1300 blocks of S. Carlisle Street in the 1918 City Directory. 

 
Figure 16. DiPuppos’ affiliation with their businesses. Source: 1918 Philadelphia City Directory. 
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Figure 17. U.S. Patent Office, Trademark Drawing for Hair Dressings, April 15, 1930, Renewed April 1950. Source: 
https://sharprazorpalace.com/razors/131369-tripoli-barber-supply-philadelphia.html.  
 

In 1921, the brothers purchased the property at 606 S. 9th Street.1 A�er a few years, they hired local 

Italian American architect Enrico Coscia and his partner, engineer William R. Wat, to transform the four-

story row home into a facility that would serve their business needs.  The business sold a wide variety of 

barber supplies and equipment. Tripoli Barber Supply Company adver�sed their barber supply products 

in The Philadelphia Inquirer regularly for decades. Figure 18 shows an example of an ad and product. 

1 Deed transfer sheet for map registry number 005S020418. 
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Figure 18. (Left) Philadelphia Inquirer, May 24, 1931, p. 40. (Right) Boar’s skin Barber Razor Strop Sold at Tripoli Barber Supply 
Co. Source: https://sharprazorpalace.com/razors/131369-tripoli-barber-supply-philadelphia-3.html.  
                                  

Tripoli Barber Supply legally sold barber supplies, as well as soaps and creams made with denatured 

alcohol. During the 1920s, Tripoli Barber Supply expanded its business, selling denatured alcohol to 

illegal dis�lleries. During Prohibi�on, there was an established market for denatured alcohol, which 

bootleggers would make safe for consump�on. Philadelphia was a primary market for this type of 

alcohol distribu�on.2 While many of these bootlegging ventures were quickly shut down, the DiPuppo 

brothers successfully ran theirs from 1921 to 1925, making them the longest-running local opera�on of 

this type. In December 1925, however, the DiPuppo Brothers were indicted and convicted.3 

 

1. Anderson, Annie. “Bootlegging”, The Encyclopedia of Greater Philadelphia. 

2. Indictment, December 1925, U.S. v. Angelo DiPuppo, Charles DiPuppo, and Frank DiPuppo, Criminal Case 1546, 
USDC-EDP, RG 21, NA-Mid Atlan�c. 
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Figure 19. Indictment, December 1925, U.S. v. Angelo DiPuppo, Charles DiPuppo, and Frank DiPuppo, Criminal Case 1546, USDC-
EDP, RG 21, NA-Mid Atlantic. 
 

Despite the 1925 charge and convic�on, the Tripoli Barber Supply business con�nued to prosper. In 

1930, they also acquired and expanded into the building adjacent to the 9th Street loca�on, at 604 S. 9th 

Street.4 As demand for barber supplies declined, the company transi�oned to beauty products and 

changed its name to Tripoli Barber and Beauty Supply Company, and finally to the Tripoli Beauty Supply 

Company.   

 

The company declared bankruptcy and closed in 1973. However, the family retained ownership of the 

604 and 606 South 9th Street property. In 1975, the buildings were purchased by Hamridge Associates. 

They owned and managed the property for four decades.  

4 Deed transfer sheet for map registry number 005S020418.  
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Figure 20. Advertisement for auction of Tripoli Barber and Beauty Supply inventory. Source: The Philadelphia Inquirer, March 24, 
1973, p. 43. 
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From 1973 to the present, this property has con�nued to be a vibrant commercial des�na�on in Bella 

Vista, serving the evolving needs and interests of its community.  In the early 1980s, the space became a 

macrobio�c cooking center called The East West Foundation and then an art gallery. From the 1980s to 

the mid-1990s, it was home to John Dorety An�ques. The business specialized in fireplace mantles.   

 

In 1998, Cur�s Anthony moved his Via Bicycle business into the building. Via Bicycle thrived at this 

loca�on for over 20 years. 

 
Figure 21. Via Bicycle repair shop interior. Source: Jessica Kourkounis for WHYY. 

  

In 2016, the building at 606 S. 9th Street was sold. Via Bicycle moved out and removed their business 

sign. This revealed the original signage for Tripoli Barber Supply Co. underneath. From 2021 to the 

present, the building has been home for the Pet Snobs bou�que. The upper floors are residen�al 

condominiums. 

 

In conclusion, the Tripoli Barber Supply Company building at 606 S. 9th Street is historically significant 

and merits lis�ng on the Philadelphia Register of Historic Places, as sa�sfying Criteria for Designa�on D 

and J. The Tripoli Barber Supply building is a dis�nc�ve example of the Italian Renaissance Revival 

architectural style. The building also exemplifies the cultural, economic, social, and historic heritage of 

the community, as a purpose-built store, manufacturing and distribu�on point for the DiPuppo brothers. 

They brought and grew their barber and beauty supply business in an area of South Philadelphia that 

welcomed numerous immigrants and their businesses in the early 20th century. 
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Appendix: Architect Enrico Coscia 

Biography writen by Writen by Emily T. Cooperman, and Sandra L. Tatman 

htps://www.philadelphiabuildings.org/pab/app/ar_display.cfm/22673 

Enrico (Henry) Coscia 

Born: 12/13/1893 

Henry (born Enrico) Coscia, son of Angelo Coscia, atended Brown Preparatory School in Philadelphia 
before studying architecture at the University of Pennsylvania, where he received a Cer�ficate of 
Proficiency in Architecture in 1921. By 1926 Coscia was a partner in the firm of Wat & Coscia, with 
William R. Wat, an engineer. This firm con�nued through 1929. In 1930 Coscia is listed independently as 
architect with an office at 1504 Locust Street, the old address for Wat & Coscia, but in the 1935/36 
Philadelphia city directory he appears as architect and president of the Cini Building and Loan 
Associa�on. 

Although most of the cita�ons from the Philadelphia Real Estate Record and Builders' Guide reflect the 
work of Wat & Coscia, Henry Coscia does receive some aten�on in 1925 with projects connected to 
Philadelphia's Italian-American community. 

While chiefly known as an engineer, William R. Wat transforms into an architect in the 1935/36 
Philadelphia city directory. His first appearance in the city directories had been in 1922, when he lists 
himself as an engineer. From 1926 to 1929 he is noted in the directories as a partner in the architectural 
firm of Wat & Coscia, along with Henry Coscia. 

 

Wat & Coscia 

htps://www.philadelphiabuildings.org/pab/app/ar_display.cfm/21572 

Wat & Coscia represents an alliance between architect Henry Coscia and engineer William R. Wat in the 
boom years of the 1920s. They maintained offices in the popular 1504 Locust Street site, but did not last 
beyond the stock market crash. Commissions listed in the Philadelphia Real Estate Record and Builders 
Guide reflect Coscia's �es to Philadelphia's Italian-American community, but expand into other markets, 
including substan�al work for Allegheny Title and Trust at Front Street and Allegheny Avenue (1926). 
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